From: Public Records Request Mailbox

Sent: Friday, August 16, 2019 2:08 PM

To: ‘dbauerlein@jacksonville.com'

Cc: Public Records Request Mailbox; Media Relations Mailbox; Kyle, Gina A. - Manager
Media Relations

Subject: FW: REQ 31779 --- FW: T-U questions about pension legislation for JEA employees

Attachments: Segal Consulting.pdf

Good afternoon,

Please see attached in response to your request. Thank you.

Jeanie Gillespie
Public Records Compliance Specialist

Direct: (904) 665-7309

JEN

NOTICE OF DISCLAIMER OF ACCURACY OF DOCUMENT AND INFORMATION

This document and the information (“Documents”) contained herein has been created solely and exclusively for the use of JEA. The
Documents may be in draft form or a work in progress, even if they are not marked as such. JEA does not guarantee the accuracy of the
Documents, or that the Documents are free from errors or omissions. It is the sole and exclusive responsibility of any user to determine the
suitability and accuracy of this document for any particular use.

Depending on the type of Documents requested and provided, JEA may have obligations to disclose or otherwise notify certain authorities
of the release and dissemination of the release of Documents. This release may include the nature, subject, and recipient of the Information.
Regulatory authorities to be notified include, but are not limited to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, North American Electric
Reliability Corporation, and the Department of Homeland Security.

From: Kyle, Gina A. - Manager Media Relations
Sent: Friday, August 16, 2019 8:49 AM
To: Public Records Request Mailbox



Cc: Media Relations Mailbox
Subject: REQ 31779 --- FW: T-U questions about pension legislation for JEA employees

Please see the request from David Bauerlein, below.

Thanks,

Gina Kyle, MBA
Manager, Media Relations
Direct: (904) 665-7974
Mobile: (904) 305-0502
Media: (904) 665-5500

Media: media@jea.com

JEN

From: Bauerlein, David <dbauerlein@jacksonville.com>

Sent: Thursday, August 15, 2019 4:14 PM

To: Kyle, Gina A. - Manager Media Relations <kylega@jea.com>
Subject: T-U questions about pension legislation for JEA employees

[External Email - Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown senders or
unexpected email. ]

Hi Gina:

Can you tell me what it would cost to provide the enhanced pension benefits to JEA employees in the event of a
sale of JEA? I've heard a figure of $200 million.

Who would pay that cost?

Has an actuarial study been done for the cost of adding the pension benefits for JEA employees? If so, can you
provide it to me?

Lastly, as a follow up to my previous email, I asked whether Mayor Lenny Curry and/or his administration had
any input into the minimum requirements in the solicitation. The response was that JEA consulted with

"political leadership."

Can you tell me specifically whether the mayor and/or his administration had input into the minimum
requirements?

Can you respond by Friday afternoon?

Thanks



David

David Bauerlein

Florida Times-Union metro reporter
(904) 359-4581

Email: dbauerlein@jacksonville.com
Twitter: @DavidBauerlein [twitter.com]

This message may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient or authorized to
receive this for the intended recipient, you must not use, copy, disclose or take any action based on this message or any
information herein. If you have received this message in error, please advise the sender immediately by sending a reply e-
mail and delete this message. Thank you for your cooperation.



7 Segal Consulting

2727 Paces Ferry Road SE Building One Suite 1400 Atlanta, GA 30339-4053
T 6G78.306.3100 www,segalco.com

August 12,2019

Mr. Randall Barnes, Treasurer
City of Jacksonville

117 West Duval Street, Suite 300
Jacksonville, FL. 32202

Re: Actuarial Impact Statement for City of Jacksonville General Employees Retirement Plan —
Ordinance #2019-566

Dear Randall:

Enclosed is a sample cover letter to Mr. Douglas Beckendorf and the impact statement presenting the
October 1, 2018 actuarial valuation results, along with the plan changes proposed in Ordinance #2019-566.
The letter, or a similar version, should be copied onto your letterhead and sent to Mr. Beckendorf. Please
note that the signature of an authorized plan representative is required on the last page of the impact

statement. Please include a copy of the latest ordinance.

The work herein was completed under my supervision, and I meet the Qualification Standards of the
American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions contained herein.

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please let us know.

Sincerely,

A7 < Wit

Jeffrey S. Williams, FCA, ASA, MAAA, EA
Vice President and Consulting Actuary

cc: Melissa Dykes — Jacksonville Electric Authority
Tom Stadelmaier — City of Jacksonville Retirement System
Matthew Powell — Segal Consulting

Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting. Member of The Segal Group. Offices throughout the United States and Canada






City of Jacksonville General Employees Retirement Plan
Actuarial Impact Statement

Ordinance 2019-566 proposes the following plan changes occur to the City of Jacksonville General Employees
Retirement Plan (“DB Plan”) if the Jacksonville Electric Authority (“JEA™) undertakes a Recapitalization
Event (“Event™), as defined in Ordinance 2019-566. The proposed changes listed below are not a complete
statement of every change listed in Ordinance 2019-566, but rather a listing of those changes that impacted the

calculations herein. The changes only apply to employees hired prior to October 1, 2017.

>

Active JEA DB Plan members who, at the time of the Event are eligible for a time service retirement,
or normal retirement, as defined in Jacksonville Code Section 120.206(a), will not be eligible to earn
additional credited service for benefit accrual purposes and will be treated as retired as of such date
and eligible to immediately receive retirement benefits.

Active JEA DB Plan members who are vested in the DB Plan as of the time of the Event and not yet
eligible for normal retirement shall be treated as a vested separated member and will be eligible to
receive their vested accrued benefit on the earliest normal retirement date they would have been
eligible for had they continued to work in covered employment until such date. The vested accrued
benefit will be calculated using the member’s final monthly compensation, as defined in Jacksonville
Code Section 120.201(n), as of the date of the Event and credited service earned as of the date of the
Event, along with additional credited service that would have been earned had the member remained in

covered employment until their earliest eligible normal retirement date.

Active JEA DB Plan members who are not vested in the DB Plan as of the time of the Event shall be
treated as a vested separated member and have their vested accrued benefit calculated as if they had
earned five (5) years of credited service and using their final monthly compensation as of the date of
the Event. If the member has worked less than 36 months as of the date of the Event, their final
monthly compensation will be the average of their monthly compensation over their period of actual
service with JEA. In lieu of a deferred vested benefit from the DB Plan, the member may instead
choose to receive a single lump sum payment equal to twice the member’s accumulated employee

contributions, without interest.

Active JEA employees who are members of the City of Jacksonville General Employees Defined
Contribution Plan (“DC Plan”) and who have at least five years of service as of the time of the Event
have the option to either remain in the DC Plan or transfer to the DB Plan, receive credited service in
the DB Plan for their time as a JEA employee in covered employment prior to the transfer, and receive
additional credited service that would have been earned had the member remained in covered
employment until their earliest eligible normal retirement date under the DB Plan. The vested accrued
benefit will be calculated using the member’s final monthly compensation, as defined in Jacksonville
Code Section 120.201(n), as of the date of the Event. The member will at that time be considered a
vested separated member of the DB Plan.

Active JEA employees who are members of the City of Jacksonville General Employees Defined
Contribution Plan (*DC Plan”) and who do not have at least five years of service as of the time of the
Event may either choose to remain in the DC Plan or transfer to the DB Plan and be treated as a vested
separated member, with their vested accrued benefit calculated as if they had earned five (5) years of
credited service and using their final monthly compensation as of the date of the Event. [f the member
has worked less than 36 months as of the date of the Event, their final monthly compensation will be
the average of their monthly compensation over their period of actual service with JEA.



> Employees of JEA who are active at the time of the Event and subsequently remain in or transfer into
the DB Plan will be eligible for a survivor benefit in the event the employee passes away prior to their
normal retirement date. The surviving spouse shall receive a monthly benefit of 75% of the deferred
vested benefit, but with the benefit calculated based on a 2.0% benefit multiplier instead of 2.5%.

> Notwithstanding the previously described plan changes, JEA employees may earn additional accruals
under the DB Plan if reemployed by the City of Jacksonville in accordance with Section 120.202(a)(4),
as defined in Ordinance 2019-566.

In conjunction with the changes above, following adjustments to the assumptions have been made:

> JEA members who at the time of the Event are not eligible for normal retirement but who instead will
have a vested accrued benefit are assumed to retire on the earliest normal retirement date they would
have been eligible for had they continued to work in covered employment until such date.

> Turnover and disability decrements are no longer valued for JEA members who have a vested accrued
benefit as determined by this ordinance.

> It is assumed that if JEA members have a choice of benefit options that they will choose the option
most valuable to them.









TABLE OF AMORTIZATION BASES

Fresh start 10/01/2016 30 $1,024,497,0 $68,369,421 28 $1,026,576,652

Experience gain 10/01/2017 30 -5,594,096 -367,451 29 -5,601,185
Plan change 10/01/2017 30 -3,528,667 -231,782 29 -3,533,138
Assumptions change 10/01/2017 30 64,164,450 4,214,678 29 64,245,761
Experience gain 10/01/2018 29 -922.806 -60,538 29 =922 806
Assumptions change 10/01/2018 29 88,449 536 5,802,505 29 88,449,536
Plan change 10/01/2018 29 5,920,390 388,392 29 5,920,390

e B AR S0

 Total i triil e i TR '-"t‘;; 58 fé‘é‘s 5

* Level percentagc of payroll; per Part VII, Chapter 1 12, G4(S)(b) ofFlonda Statutes, outstanding balances were amortized
usmg a l 50% payroll growth rate for Octoher 1,2018 valuanon

TABLE OF SURTAX AMORTIZATION BASES

Discounted surtax revenue 10/01/2016 30 -$322,190,859 -$22.168,630 28 -$332,865,158

applied

Surtax offset gain 10/01/2017 30 -7,927,401 -520,716 29 -7,937,448
Surtax offset allocation 10/01/2017 30 -10,588,075 -695,484 29 -10,601,493
assumption change

Surtax offset discount rate 10/01/2017 30 -18,720,570 -1,229,671 29 -18,744,293
assumption change

Surtax offset gain 10/01/2018 29 -8,089,137 -530,670 29 -8,089,187
Surtax offset allocation 10/01/2018 29 -20,241,389 -1,327,884 29 -20,241,389
assumption change

Surtax offset discount rate 10/01/2018 29 -21,761,957 -1,427,637 29 -21,761,957

_assumption change

420,240,025

* Level percentage of payroll; per Part VII Chapter l 12 64(5)(b) of Florr.da Statutes, uutstandmg balances were amort:zed using
a 1.50% payroll growth rate for October 1, 2018 valuation.
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(a)

granted Credited Service pursuant to Section 120.209(b) (1)

and (2).

k%

(dd)Minimum Vesting shall mean five years of credited service

before the member is entitled to retirement benefits except
for service-incurred disability retirement income or service

incurred death benefits. Employees of JEA actively employed

on the effective date of a Recapitalization Event shall be

deemed to have reached Minimum Vesting without regard to the

number of years of Credited Service.

* %k

(hh) Recapitalization Event shall mean the closing and funding of

a transaction or a series of related transactions in

accordance with Article 21 of the Charter of the City of

Jacksonville and any other applicable law that results in

either (i) unencumbered cash proceeds to the City of

Jacksonville of at least Three Billion Dollars

($83,000,000,000) or (ii) at least 50% of the net depreciated

property, plant and equipment wvalue of either JEA’'s electric

system or JEA' s water and wastewater system  being

transferred, assigned, sold or otherwise disposed of. The

effective date of a Recapitalization Event shall be the date

of closing of a transaction that results in either of the

above two contingencies occurring, or in the case of a series

of related transactions, the date of a «closing of a

transaction that, when combined with other prior transactions

in the series, results in either of the above two

contingencies.

Sec. 120.202. - Membership.

Consistent with the provisions of Chapter 16 of the City

Charter, full-time civil service employees not eligible for
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option after the employee's fifth anniversary of employment and

prior to retirement to convert back to the DC plan. For purposes

of this section as it applies to JEA employees only, the fifth

anniversary shall be based on the actual period of JEA employment

and not years of Credited Service pursuant to section 120.206(a)

or section 120.209(b) .

(e)If a new employee initially chooses the DB plan, and then elects

to eemvert—transfer to the GEDC plan within the first five years
of employment, then the employee will have the remaining porticn
of the initial five-year period of employment to elect to eemvert
from—the—GEBC—plan—back—transfer to the DB plan. This initial
five-year window will be open to a new employee regardless of his
or her initial choice of Plan, but the number of changes from one
Plan to the other will be limitéd to three during such five-year
period. All employees seeking to revert from the DB plan to the
DC plan must be certified to have completed the intensive
training program sponsored by the City. A new employee who elects
the DB plan will have an additional option after the first five
years of employment to convert to the DC plan at any time prior
Lo retirement from the City. A new employee who elects the GEDC

plan will not have any option after the end of the first five

years of employment to convert to the DB plan. For purposes of

this section as it applies to JEA employees, the fifth

anniversary or first five years of employment or five-year window

shall be based on the actual period of JEA employment and not

years of Credited Service pursuant tc section 120.206(a).

(f)JEA employees hired before October 1, 2017 who are members of

the General Employees Defined Contribution Plan and who are

actively employed on the effective date of a Recapitalization

Event shall be permitted to transfer to the DB Plan. Such JEA

employees who transfer to the DB Plan will receive Credited
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Service under the DB Plan for the actual period of their JEA

employment prior to the transfer, as well as Credited Service

granted pursuant to section 120.209(b) (1) or (2). JEA employees

hired before October 1, 2017 and who are actively employed on the

effective date of a Recapitalization Event but who are not vyet

vested shall be subject to the provisions of section

120.209(b) (1}.

Sec. 120.203. - Contributions; refunds of contributions.

* % %

() In consideration of the exit of JEA employees from active

membership in the Plan upon a Recapitalization Event and the

additional benefits granted to them in section 120.209(b), JEA

shall make an additional contribution to the Plan in a lump sum

within fourteen (14) days following the funding of a

Recapitalization Event. That additional contribution shall be

calculated as an amount necessary to maintain the Plan’s level of

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability, as calculated for funding

purposes. Other events during the year may affect the Unfunded

Actuarial Accrued Liability. However, the objective underlying

the calculation of this additional contribution from JEA is for

the Plan’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability not to be

affected by the transaction, i.e., the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued

Liability shall be the same before as after the date of the

Recapitalization Event. This objective and the calculation of

the additional contribution shall recognize the actuarial gain

occurring due to the exit of all Plan members employed by JEA,

converting from active employees to either retirees or vested

separated members, and shall recognize the cost of the additional

benefits granted to such members and as described in this Part II

by reason of the Recapitalization Event.
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After the Recapitalization Event and the exit of JEA employees

from active membership in the Plan, the Plan shall not have any

recourse against JEA or its successor for any employer

contribution or other amortization payments on the Unfunded

Actuarial Accrued Liability.

* % %k
Sec. 120.206. - Time service retirement benefit; cost-of-
living adjustments.
kK

(b)A normal retirement benefit shall be determined by multiplying
2.5 percent of final monthly compensation as defined in Section
120.201 by the number of years of credited service to a maximum

of B0 percent. Members actively employed by JEA on the effective

date of a Recapitalization Event who are, at that time, eligible

for time service retirement benefits pursuant to section

120.206(a) shall be treated in all respects as retired as of such

date and entitled to immediate retirement benefits and attendant

rights as described in this Part II.

¥k Kk
Sec. 120.207 - Surviving spouse benefits; children's benefits;

orphans' benefits; dependent parents; funeral expenses.

%* % %

(1) For members actively employed by JEA on the effective date of

the Recapitalization Event as described in section

120.209 (b) (1) and 120.209(b) (2) that receive additional

credited service and will have a deferred retirement benefit,

in the event of the death of such a member subsequent to the

effective date of a Recapitalization Event but prior to the

date of eligibility for monthly benefits or the date of

application to rescind the deferred vested accrued benefit,

the eligible surviving spouse shall receive a benefit of 75%
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(b)

of the deferred benefit but based on a 2% accrual instead of

2.5%. The supplement paid will be based on actual service.

i. The benefit shall be paid immediately effective the day

after the death of the former employee.

ii. The benefit will be increased by 10% for each surviving

child under 18 until the child turns 18 up to a maximum

of 100% of the former employee benefit calculated at the

2% accrual rate.

iii. If there is no eligible spouse, minor children will

receive a benefit of $300 per month until age 18 (with no

supplement) up to the same maximum.

iv. Orphaned children will be paid the same benefit as the

spouse.

In the case of multiple children the benefit is to be

e

paid in an amount not to exceed the total eligible

spousal benefit.

vi. In the cases with child benefits with no eligible spouse,

if employee contributions remain after all payments are

made to children they will be paid to any eligible

children after the last child turns 18.

vii. If there is no eligible surviving spouse or surviving

children, the estate will be paid the value of the

employee contributions only.

% k%

Sec. 120.209 - Vesting, termination, re-employment.
%* % %
A member who shall leave the service of the City prior to
eligibility for normal service retirement or early service
retirement, but who has completed five years of creditable
service shall be entitled to receive retirement benefits

commencing at age 65 at a 2.5 percent accrual rate for each
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months prior to the date the deferred vested benefit

would be payable; and

(2) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Part

II, members actively emploved by JEA on the effective date

of the Recapitalization Event who have, at that time,

completed five or more years of credited service but who

have not satisfied the <conditions for time service

requirement set forth in section 120.206(a) shall:

(a) Shall be treated for all purposes under this Part II as

a vested separated member;:

(b) Shall have additional years of credited service added

for benefit accrual purposes as follows: each such

vested separated member’s monthly deferred vested

benefit accrued as of the effective date of such

Recapitalization Event shall be determined using the

number of vears of credited service such member would

have as of their earliest normal retirement date (i.e.,

the earliest date the conditions set forth in section

120.206(a) would be satisfied if such member were to

continue to working in covered employment until such

date) ;

(c) Shall have the monthly vested benefit accrued as of the

effective date of such Recapitalization Event determined

using the member’s final monthly compensation as of the

effective date of such Recapitalization Event;

(d) Shall have the monthly vested benefit accrued as of the

effective date of such Recapitalization Event determined

with recognition of any minimum benefit applicable under

section 120.206(g) including any indexation of the

minimum as described therein;

10
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(e) Shall be entitled to receipt of such monthly vested

benefit accrued commencing on the earliest normal

retirement date (i.e., the earliest date the conditions

set forth in section 120.206(a) would be satisfied if

such member were to continue to work in covered

employment until such date).

(3) Fellowing a Recapitalization Event, and the accrual of

additional service pursuant te section 120.209, JEA

employees shall have no further accruals under the

Retirement Plan unless reemployed by the City and in

accordance with section 120.202(a) (4).

% % %

Part V. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN.
SUBPART A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN.
* %%k
Sec. 120.502A. - Membership.

(a) Membership shall be comprised of all general employees of the
City as defined in Section 120.201 (m), Ordinance Code, hired
on or after October 1, 2017—Fhe—membership—shall —alse
- ! " l : ] 1 2017 n

] — - ; 20202 .
beeceme—a—member—of —the—GEBE~, including those JEA emplovees

actively employed as of the effective date of the

Recapitalization Event.

The membership shall also include any employee hired prior to

October 1, 2017 who pursuant to the provisions of Section

120.202 elects to become a member of the GEDC.

Sec. 120.503A. - Contributions.
Member contributions shall be eight percent of earnable
compensation as defined in Section 120.201(l) of the Ordinance

Code. Member contributions shall ©be picked-up rather than

1:1
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contributed as provided in Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue
Code. A portion of the Member contributions, equal to 0.3 percent,
shall be used to fund the disability and survivor benefits outlined
below. The City shall contribute the minimum amount necessary to
maintain the City's exemption from Social Security, but not less
than 7.7 percent of earnable compensation. On and after October 1,
2017, the City’s contribution shall be 12 percent. A portion of the
City contributions, equal to 0.3 percent, shall be used to fund the
disability and survivor benefits outlined below; however, the City
shall contribute such additional sums, as necessary, to fund the
disability and survivor benefits on a sound actuarial basis.
Members may make additional contributions on an after-tax basis, to
the extent permitted by law. Members may also rollover to the GEDC
plan benefits accrued in other qualified plans consistent with the
then prevailing provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Members

actively employed by JEA on the effective date of a

Recapitalization Event, as defined in section 120.201(hh), who are

members of the GEDC Plan, will be deemed separated from service on

that date and deemed fully vested in their employer contributions

and earnings credited to that date pursuant to section 120.504A.

JEA will make no further contributions to the GEDC plan on behalf

of such members following a Recapitalization Event.

Sec. 120.504A. - Vesting.

Upon leaving employment, GEDC plan members will be entitled to
100 percent of their own contributions and earnings and will be
entitled to  the following  percentages of the employer’s
contribution and earnings after the indicated number of years of
service: Members of the GEDC plan shall be 25 percent vested upon
the conclusion of two years of credited service and shall vest an
additional 25 percent each year thereafter until fully vested upon

the conclusion of five years of credited service. Provided,

iz
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however, that Members actively employed by JEA on the effective

date of a Recapitalization Event shall be deemed fully vested in

their employer contributions and earnings credited to that date.

% kk
Section 2, Collective Bargaining. If, or as required,
the JEA will collectively bargain with unions representing covered

bargaining unit employees of JEA.

Section 3. Contingency of a Recapitalization Event. All
provisions of this ordinance amending Chapter 120 and pertaining
specifically to employees of JEA shall apply only to those
individuals actively employed by JEA on the effective date of a
Recapitalization Event and only if a Recapitalization Event occurs.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become
effective upon signature by the Mayor or upon becoming effective

without the Mayor’s signature.
Form Approved:

/s/ Lynne Rhode

Office of General Counsel
Legislation Prepared By: Lynne Rhode

GC-#1297611-v4-JEA_Pension_Legislation
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